

Eiken Chemical Co., Ltd.

Contents

Key factors in designing LAMP primers

1. The LAMP primer	
2. 2 Key factors in the LAMP primer design	
2.1 Tm	
2.2 Stability at the end of the primers	
2.3 GC content	
2.4 Secondary structure	4
2.5 Distance between primers	
3. The steps in LAMP primer design	
4. Designing primers using the PrimerExplorer	
4.1 Standard method	5
4.2 Automatic determination	5
5. Primer design functions	5
5.1 Primer design that takes the location of mutation into account	5
5.2 Primer design that specifies the primer location	5
5.3 Loop primer design	
5.4 Primer design for the entire target region	
5.5 Check of the primer ends	
5.6 Saving the primer design conditions	7

How to use the PrimerExplorer V. 3

1.	Primer design using M13 as the template (Target)	8
	1.1 Uploading the target sequence	8
	1.2 Designing the primer	9
	1.3 Displaying the results	11
	1.4 Primer set selection	12
	2. Primer design for AT-rich sequences	15
	3. Changing the primer design conditions (parameter)	17
	3.1 Changing and storing the primer design conditions	17
	3.2 Using the saved primer design conditions to design primers	19
	4. Designing primers with specified primer locations	21
	4.1 Specifying the primer locations in the target sequence	21
	4.2 Specify the primer location to be designated for primer design	22
	5. Loop primer design	25
	5.1 Uploading the primer data file	25

5.2 Designing loop primers —	— 25
5.3 Narrowing down the loop primer set candidates	<u> </u>
6. Primer design that takes the location of mutation into account	— 29
6.1 Uploading the target sequence	— 29
6.2 Designing primers that do not include the mutation by entering the location of	
the mutation over the target sequ ence	— 29
6.3 Designing primers with mutations at the 5' end or 3' end of the primer location ——	— 32

Advanced primer design

1	. Precautions in primer design ————————————————————————————————————	38
	1.1 When too many primer sets are generated	38
	1.2 When too few primer sets are generated —	38
2	. Designing wild-type and mutant primers	39
	2.1 Detecting wild type and mutant by amplification using common primers —	39
	2.2 Highly specific primers (specific primers that distinguish wild-type from mutant)	40

Experimental procedures and techniques

Precaution for the LAMP experiment —	43
Reaction condition	43
Confirmation of the LAMP product 1	44
Confirmation of the LAMP product 2	44
Precaution for the reagent	44
List of terms	45

Key factors in designing LAMP primer

1. The LAMP primer

The design of LAMP primers is based on the six regions in the target sequence, designated in the Figure on the right from the 5'-end as F3, F2, F1, B1, B2, and B3.

Forward Inner Primer (FIP) consists of the F2 sequence (at its 3' end) that is complementary to the F2c region, and the same sequence as F1c region at its 5' end.

Furthermore, Forward loop primer is designed using the complementary strand corresponding to the region between F1 and F2, while Backward loop primer is designed using the complementary strand corresponding to the region between B1 and B2.



2. Key factors in the LAMP primer design

The four key factors in the LAMP primer design are the Tm, stability at the end of each primers, GC content, and secondary structure.

<u>2.1 Tm</u>

Tm is estimated using the Nearest-Neighbor method. This method is currently considered to be the approximation method that gives the value closest to the actual value.

The calculated Tm is affected by experimental conditions such as the salt concentration and oligo concentration, so it is preferred that Tm be calculated under fixed experimental conditions (oligo concentration at 0.1 μ M, sodium ion concentration at 50 mM, magnesium ion concentration at 4 mM).

The Tm for each region is designed to be about 65° C (64 - 66° C) for F1c and B1c, about 60° C (59 - 61° C) for F2, B2, F3, and B3, and about 60° C for the loop primers.

2.2 Stability at the end of the primers

The end of the primers serves as the starting point of the DNA synthesis and thus must have certain degree of stability. The 3' ends of F2/B2, F3/B3, and LF/LB and the 5' end of F1c/B1c are designed so that the free energy is –4 kcal/ mol or less. The 5' end of F1c after amplification corresponds to the 3' end of F1, so that stability is important. (See lower left Figure).

The change in free energy (ΔG) is the difference between the product free energy and the reactant free energy.

r 6 bp
All real lines
-4Kcat/mo
- 5
- 1 ¹



The reaction proceeds toward a negative change in free energy (ΔG). The annealing between the primer and the target gene is an equilibrium reaction, and the annealing reaction proceeds with a smaller ΔG (see lower right Figure).

2.3 GC content

Primers are designed so that their GC content is between about 40% to 65%. Primers with GC content between 50% and 60% tend to give relatively good primers.

2.4 Secondary structure

It is important, particularly for the Inner primer, that primers are designed so that they do not form secondary structures.

To prevent the formation of primer dimers, it is also important to ensure that the 3' ends are not complementary.

2.5 Distance between primers

The primers are designed so that the distance from the end of F2 to the end of B2 (the region amplified by the LAMP method) is between 120 bases and 160 bases.

The primers are also designed so that the distance from the 5' end of F2 to the 5' end of F1 (the portion that forms the loop) is between 40 bases and 60 bases. The primers are also designed so that the distance between F2 and F3 is between 0 to 60 bases.



3. The steps in LAMP primer design

As indicated by the figure on the right, the steps in primer design involve designing the regular LAMP primers (FIP, BIP, F3, B3) and using them in an actual amplification. They are then chosen as the LAMP primers if the amplification actually proceeds and the results are satisfactory. If the amplification does not occur or if the results are not satisfactory, the primers need to be re-designed.

When designing the loop primers, the loop primers are designed using the primer information file of the selected LAMP primers. If upon performing the actual reaction the rate of amplification increases, then they are chosen as the loop primers. If the results are not satisfactory,

Primer desi	gning flow	V Bady for
	-	
Register Provide State		- Andrew Street
	+ Compiliant	Tanàn tao Aona ao Aona amin'ny taona amin'ny
-	*<	A DEVICE A
	Des	station (Largebox

the primers need to be re-designed. The loop primers are not the essential requirement for LAMP.

4. Designing primers using the PrimerExplorer

The individual functions are discussed below.

4.1 Standard method

The user enters the primer design conditions to design the primers. The primer design conditions for a normal sequence (45%<GC<60%) has been entered as a default setting. If the target sequences are AT rich (GC content < 45%) or GC rich sequences (GC content > 60%), then the primers are designed with the Tm, Length, and GC content set as follows.

	Tm (⁰C)	Length (mer)	GC content (%)
AT rich	>55	18-25	<45
GC rich	<68	15-22	>60

4.2 Automatic judgment

The steps in the automatic judgment are explained briefly in the Figure on the right.

When the target sequence is loaded, PrimerExplorer determines automatically the GC content of the target sequence. Based on the result, the sequence is classified as an AT rich sequence (GC% <45), normal sequence (45 < GC%< 60), or GC rich sequence (GC%> 60), and the primer design conditions are automatically selected. The design conditions are such that the Tm, Length, and GC content are set to fulfill conditions that have been optimized for a sequence, so that there is no need for the user to enter these values.



5. Primer design functions

5.1 Primer design that takes the location of mutation into account

When designing primers for mutations, the default option generates primers that are designed randomly, so that the primers designed may contain the mutation itself. In general, to amplify and detect the wild type and the mutation using common primers, select the primer sets whose sequence does not include the mutation point.

Under such circumstances, the primer design function that does not include mutation is used. If no appropriate primers are designed when this function is used, then the primers would be designed under less stringent conditions that allow the mutation to be included in the 5' end or the 3' end. It is possible to specify the primer regions allowing mutations and the position of the mutation at that region (5' end, internal, 3' end).

5.2 Primer design that specifies the primer location

This function permits specification of the region of each primer (F3, F2, F1, B1, B2, or B3) used in LAMP. This function is used if the region to be amplified or the regions of primers are known to be effective.

5.3 Loop primer design

After the regular LAMP primer set (FIP, BIP, F3, B3) has been determined, the loop primers, which reduce the amplification time and improve the specificity, can be designed. The loop primers are designed based on the primer information file of the regular primer set.

5.4 Primer design for the entire target region

It is now possible to design primers for the entire target region. When conducting the primer design, the primers are designed for FIP-BIP and F3 and B3 in the entire target region. Next, for each FIP-BIP region, F3 and B3 are selected to form a primer set. The generation of primer sets, which consist a combination of FIP-BIP with the F3 and B3, begins at the 5' end and proceeds until the 3' end is reached. Then, the primer design proceeds again from the 5' end to the 3' end, and each FIP- BIP can form primer set with a maximum of three combinations of F3-B3.

For each primer set with the same FIP-BIP region, various primer sets are designed for the entire target region.

5.5 Check of the primer ends

The primer's ends are checked automatically, and those primer sets possessing the complementary sequences or special sequences are automatically eliminated. A complementary sequence is defined as symmetric sequences (for example CCCGGG and GAATTC) and special sequences (for example, sequences containing the same nucleotide at the end such as CCGGGG and AATTTT). These can form primer dimers and thus are eliminated at the primer design step.

Complementarity against the target sequence is also checked. The ends of the primer candidates designed are compared to the target gene sequences, and if the end sequences of the primer candidates also exist in a location other than the amplification region of the target sequence, then that primer set is eliminated. This serves to eliminate primer sets that can cause nonspecific amplification.





5.6 Saving the primer design conditions

The primer design conditions that the users manually have input can be saved as a file style and re-loaded. When the sequence and the preserved primer design condition are input, the data previously obtained can be quickly displayed and the primer design working can be resumed easily.

How to use PrimerExplorer V3

1. Primer design using M13 as the template (Target)

1.1 Uploading the target sequence

The target sequence is uploaded in the PrimerExplorer V3 startup window (Figure 1.1).

First, click on the "Browse" button to select the target sequence file. The target sequence entered is set to less than 2 kbp. Three types of file formats are supported, plain text format (sequence only), FASTA format, and GenBank format.

Next, a parameter set (primer design conditions) is chosen from one of the three below.

- Automatic Judgment: Based on the GC content of the target sequence, the initial parameter setting is specified.
 If the GC content is 45% or less, the "AT rich" parameters are used; if greater than 60%, the "GC rich" parameters are used.
 For all others, the "Normal" parameters are used.
- ② Normal: The user enters the primer design conditions manually to design the primers. As the default conditions, the "Normal" parameters from ① above are displayed.
- ③ User Assignment: Click on the [Browse] button on the right, and specify the parameter file of primer design conditions saved on the PC. The specified parameter file will be used as the initial setting to design the primers.



Figure1.1 PrimerExplorer V3 startup window

The default parameter set is "automatic judgment." In "automatic judgment," the GC content of the target sequence is automatically calculated, and the primer design conditions are automatically selected in the following primer design conditions ("Normal sequences primer design conditions," "GC rich sequences primer design conditions," "AT rich sequences primer design conditions ").

Next, click on the "Primer Design" button.

1.2 Designing the primer

As an example, a portion of the M13 sequence (length 1969 bp, GC content = 48.2%) will be used to design the primers.

As indicated in the primer design window shown in Figure 1.2, "Parameter Set" of "Normal" has been selected. Normal parameter conditions are as indicated in Figure 1.3.

Next, click on the "Generate" button to start the primer design. (Figure 1.2)

	LAMP Primer designing software - Microsoft Internet Explorer				
	File Edit View Favorites Tools Help				
	🕞 Back 🔹 💿 🕤 💌 😰 🏠 🔎 Search 🧙 Favorites 🤣 😥 - چ 🕋 - 🛄 鑬 🦓				
	Address 💩 https://primerexplorer.jp/elamp3.0.0/servlet/QueryUpLoad				
	241 TGTGGTGGTT ACGCGCAGCG TGACCGC	TAC ACTTGCCAGC GCCCTAGCGC CCGCTCC	TTT CGCTTTCTTC CCTTCCTTTC 320	F3	
	F2				
	321 TCGCCACGTT CGCCGGCTAGE CTCTAAARCG GGGGCTCCCT TTAGGGCTCC GATTAGTGC TTTAGGCAC 400				
	B1				
				B2	
				B3	
				Clear	
Click on the	'	• Ignore range			
Generate	1 Select Pange Option	 Within F2-B2 Targeting 	g Range Insuit positions in Toraging Pa	nga whan you	
bullon.		OBetween F1c-B1c	select "Within F2-B2" or "Betw	een Flc-Blc".	
	2. Push "Generate" button and wait during calculation.	Generate	t Generated. Number of Primers	F2/B2 List	
	 Push "Display" button in order to transfer to page "Primer Set List". 	Display Page 1	Displayed. Sorting Rule: None	~	
"Parameter Set"	Parameter Set				
of "Normal" has been selected.	Hormal V Save Parameters				
	Basic Setting				
	Length	Tm	Distances		
	Applet page_number started				
	🐉 start 🦉 1. 1 - Paint	👌 LAMP Primer designin			

Figure 1.2 Primer design window

Normal 💌 Save Parameters		
Basic Setting		
Length	Tm	Distances
F1c/B1c - 20 * - 22 F2/B2 - 18 * - 20 F3/B3 - 18 * - 20	* F1c/B1c 64 * - 66 * F2/B2 59 * - 61 * F3/B3 59 * - 61	(F2-B2) - 120 + - 180 + Loop(F1c-F2) - 40 + - 60 + F2-F3 0 + - 20 + F1c-B1c 0 + - 100 +

Figure 1.3 Normal parameter conditions

When the primer design starts, the message area will indicate the status of progress in the primer design, as shown in Figure 1.4. The number of primer candidates for each region that fulfills the parameter conditions is displayed, as well as the number of inner primers (FIP, BIP) for each region. Based on these data, the primer sets are created.

In this example, a total of 1,000 primer sets were designed. Clicking on the "Display" button will display the Primer Set List results.



Figure1.4 Window after completion of primer design under normal parameter conditions

1.3 Displaying the results

Primer Set List window (Figures 1.5a, 1.5b) shows the ID number of each primer set on the left, and to its right the change in free energy, which indicates the propensity for dimer formation. A low value of the change in free energy results in a higher likelihood of dimer formation and thus the primer set is unacceptable. Green capital letters indicate the region F3, blue capital letters indicate the region F2, black lower-case letters indicate the region F1c, black capital letters indicate the region B1c, blue lower-case letters the region B2, and green lower-case letters the B3 region.

The primer set is designed with the 5' end of F2 as the origin, and primer sets that fulfill the primer design conditions are displayed for the entire target sequence from the 5' end toward the 3' end. For each region F2, ones from other regions (regions F3, F1c, B1c, B2 and B3) are determined and displayed. After displaying the primers designed for the target sequence from the 5' end to the 3' end, the design is re-started from the 5' end to the 3' end. This operation is repeated until 1,000 primer design candidates are generated.

In this example, the length of the input target is 1,969 bp, and after the first round from the 5' end to the 3' end, 59 primer sets have been designed. After the second round, primers are designed from set 60 to set 118. The 5' end of the region F2 included in the final primer set after the first round is at 1,281 bp (the 5' end of F3 is 1440 bp). (See Figure 1.5b) Several primers are then selected to compare the specific conditions.



Figure 1.5a Primer Set List window -1 (page 1)



Figure 1.5b Primer Set List window -2 (page 1)

1.4 Primer set selection

10-15 primer sets that amplify different regions in the target sequence are selected, and detail information on the sets is compared to select the appropriate primer sets. If the region to be amplified is pre-determined, then the primer sets that amplify that region are selected.

Here, we assume that "any region in the target sequence can be amplified."

In the Primer Set List window (Figure 1.5a), primer sets are chosen that encompasses the entire length if possible. As an example, the ten sets, with the ID numbers 1, 5, 8, 9, 10, 14, 15, 17, 19 and 32, are selected. Check the boxes located to the left of each primer set and click on the "Details" button to open the Primer Set Details window.



Figure 1.6 Primer Set Details window

In the window shown in Figure 1.6, check the stability of the 3' end at the region F2, 5' end at the region F1c, 3' end at the region B2, and the 5' end at the region B1c. As these are the starting positions of gene replication by primers, their end stability is important. Specifically, check to see whether the ΔG (stability) is -4.0 kcal/mol or lower. For example the end with $\Delta G = -6.5$ kcal/mol is more stable than the end with $\Delta G = -4.0$ kcal/mol.

In the examples, in the set with ID number 1, the stability of the 5' end of F1c is -3.99, so this is eliminated because the end stability is inadequate. For the remaining sets, any set can be selected, but if possible, primer sets with the higher end stability should be selected. Here, the ID numbers 5, 8, 10, 14 and 17 were selected.

Next, we proceed to the next window to confirm the primers selected. Check the boxes for the ID numbers 5, 8, 10, 14, and 17, and click on the "Confirm" button.

The primer information for the selected the ID numbers 5, 8, 10, 14, and 17 will again be displayed in the Selected Primer Set window (Figure 1.7a). Confirm the conditions for the primers selected.

Under the ID number is the "Primer Information" button; this is used in designing the loop primers for the primer set chosen. This will be explained further in the section on loop primer design; click on the "Primer Information" button to save the primer information. Follow the instructions in the window to specify the file name and location, and save the "primer information file." (See Figure 1.7b)

This is the end of regular primer design.



Figure 1.7a Selected Primer Set window

Sector 18 Constants		
Selected Primer Sets - Microsoft Internet Ex	lorer	
Back • 🔘 - 💌 💈 🏠 🔎 Search	📌 Favorites 🕢 🔗 - 😓 🥅 🛄 🎇 🦓	
Address 🕘 https://primerexplorer.jp/elamp3.0.0/servlet/0	onfirmPage	So Links ×
Salartad Primar Sate	Desim M 06042614 1047	
Jelected I filler Jets	L#3818110 00046 0141547	
Push "Primer Information" button to save se	lected primer information, which is used for designing loop primers.	
-		
	File Download - Security warning	
1 ID:5 dimer (minimum) dG = -2.46	Do you want to save this file?	
Primer Information	Name: PrimerInfo5143d8b2	
	Type: Unknown File Type	
label 5'pos 3'pos len Tm 5'dG 3'dG GCrate Sequence	From: primerexplorer.jp	
F3 129 147 19 59.19 -5.18 -4.09 0.53 AATCGGG	or	
B3 343 362 20 59.89 -6.02 -6.19 0.55 CCCGATT	TA Save Lancel	
FIP 42 6666661	AC	
F2 152 171 20 59 23 -5 59 -4 71 0 50 GCTCTG4	TT While files from the Internet can be useful, this file type can	
Fie 192 213 22 64.09 -8.70 -5.01 0.55 GGCGCG1	AC potentially harm your computer. If you do not trust the source, do not save this software. What's the risk?	
B2 308 326 19 60.46 -6.94 -5.20 0.53 TGGCGAG	AA	
B1c 255 274 20 64.85 -7.42 -4.55 0.60 GCAGCGT	GACCGCTACACTT	
2 ID:8 dimer (minimum) dG = -2.43		
Primer Information		
label 5'pos 3'pos len Tm 5'dG 3'dG GCrate Sequence		
F3 388 405 18 60.57 -4.91 -5.88 0.56 TGCTTT	CGGCACCTCGA	
B3 597 616 20 59.70 -7.09 -4.33 0.50 GCAGGCO	AAAATCCTGTTTG	
FIP 42 ACGTCAN	AGGGCGAAAAACCGT-ATTTGGGTGATGGTTCACGT	8
E Done		🔒 🧶 Internet
🛃 start 🛛 🦉 1.7a - Paint 🖉 L	MP Primer designi 🖉 Primer Set List :Prim 🗿 Selected Primer Set	😂 File Download 🛛 🔇 😨 🍪 🗐 2:35 PM

Figure 1.7b Primer Information Save window

To save the primer information for use in designing the loop primers, click on the "Primer Information" button.

2. Primer design for AT-rich sequences

In this section, primers will be designed for an AT rich gene sequence. We will use a portion of a viral gene of

1,140 bp in length and GC content = 34.5%.

Upload the target sequence in the Startup window of the PrimerExplorer V3.

Enter the target sequence file, and after confirming that "Automatic Judgment" has been selected for the parameter set, click on the "Primer Design" button. (Figure not shown)

	AMP Primer designing software - Microsoft Internet Explorer			
	File Edit View Favorites Tools Help			
	🕒 Back 🝷 🕥 🕤	💌 💈 🏠 🔎 Search 👷 Favorites 🤞	3 🗟 • 💺 🔳 🗧 🛄 🚳 👘	
	Address 🕘 https://primer	rexplorer.jp/elamp3.0.0/servlet/QueryUpLoad		
Click on the "Generate"				Clear
	1. Select Range O	⊙Ignore range ○Within F2-B2 Targ ○Between F1c-B1c	ting Range Input positions in Target select "Within F2-B2" or	ing Range when you "Between Flc-Blc".
	2. Push "Generat and wait during ca	e" button 🦻 Generate	Set Generated. Number of Primers	F2/B2 List
"AT rich" has been selected for the "Parameter	3. Push "Display in order to transfer "Primer Set List".	" button Display Page 1	Displayed. Sorting Rule None	×
Set "	Parameter Set			
	AT rich 👻 Sav	re Parameters		
	Basic Setting			
The setting includes	Length	Tm	Distances	
a longer primer	F1c/B1c - 20	+ - 25 + F1c/B1c - 60	+ - 63 + (F2-B2) - 120	+ - 180 +
length and lower	F2/B2 - 18	+ - 25 + F2/B2 - 55	+ - 58 + Loop(F1c-F2) - 40	+ - 60 +
Tm.	F3/B3 - 18	• - • 25 • F3/B3 • 55	+ - 58 + F1c-B1c - 0	+ 20 + + 100 +
	Applet page, pumber sta	arted		🔒 🙇 Internet
	A otart W	1.74 Delek - Without Delever		

Figure 2.1 Primer Design window

The GC content of the sequence was automatically calculated, and the sequence was determined to be AT rich. Thus, "AT rich" was automatically selected as the "Parameter Set." The setting calls for a longer primer and a lower Tm (see Figure 2.1).

Next, click on the "Generate" button to design the primers. This will result in the generation of 1,000 primer candidates. (Figure not shown.)

Next, click on the "Display" button to display the results of the primer design. 158 sets of primers have been designed from the 5' end to the 3' end, and additional sets from the 159th set have been designed again from the 5' end to the 3' end. (See Figure 2.2)

The method described in Section 1 is then followed (See p.12 - 14) to compare the primer information and to select the primer sets. It should be confirmed that at each primer region, the differences in the Tm between F1 and F2 and between B1 and B2 are about 5°C.

🗿 Primer Set List :Primer set: sorting rule [None] - Microsoft Internet Explorer														×
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help													_	,
🕝 Back 🔹 🐑 👻 😰 🏠 🔎 Search 👷 Favorites 🤣 😥 = 🌺 🔟 = 📴 🎇 🥸														
Address	Attps://primerexplorer.jp/	/elamp3.0.0/list	/75062201953	1.html								🗸 🔁 Go	Links	»
taacac	CCTTTCTTTGCTGT	TTCTAAACCC				cgta	attaacgtg	aaagete	ac	ggaaaagcgs	actaca	[133]		^
taacac	CCTTTCTTTGCTGT	TTCTAAACCC				cgta	attaacgtg	aaagete	ac	ggaaaagcgs	actaca	[134]		
taacac	CCTTTCTTTGCTGT	TTCTAAACCC				cgta	attaacgtg	aaagete	ac	ggaaaagcga	actaca	[135]		
taacac	CCTTTCTTTGCTGT	TTCTAAACCC				cgta	aattaacgtg	aaagete	ac	ggaaaagcgs	actaca	[136]		
taacac	CCTTTCTTTGCTGT	TTCTAAACCC				cgta	aattaacgtg	aaagete	ac	ggaaaagcgs	actaca	[137]		
taacac	CCTTTCTTTGCTGT	TTCTAAACCC				cgta	aattaacgtg	aaagete	ac	ggaaaagcgs	actaca	[138]		
taacac	CCTTTCTTTGCTGT	TTCTAAACCC				cgta	aattaacgtg	aaagete	ac	ggaaaagcgs	actaca	[139]		
taacac	CCTTTCTTTGCTGT	TTCTAAACCC				cgta	aattaacgtg	aaagete		agoga	actacaaagt	ettt	[140]	
taacac	CCTTTCTTTGCTGT	TTCTAAACCC				cgta	aattaacgtg	aaagete		deda	actacaaagt	ettttea	[141]	
taacac	CCTTTCTTTGCTGT	TTCTAAACCC				cgta	aattaacgtg	aaagete		goga	actacaaagt	ettttea	[142]	
taacac	CCTTTCTTTGCTGT	TTCTAAACCC				cgta	aattaacgtg	aaagete	ac	ggaaaagcgs	actaca	[143]		
taacac	CCTTTCTTTGCTGT	TTCTAAACCC				cgta	attaacgtg	aaagete	ac	ggaaaagcgs	actaca	[144]		
taacac	CCTTTCTTTGCTGT	TTCTAAACCC				cgta	aattaacgtg	aaagete	ac	ggaaaagcgs	actaca	[145]		
taacac	CCTTTCTTTGCTGT	TTCTAAACCC				cgta	aattaacgtg	aaagete	ac	ggaaaagcgs	actaca	[146]		
aca	ctgttgggaaagaaacgaca		TGGGTACAC	AGACACATAC	TATGAT			geteatg	tatagactac	dda deda	actacaaagt	ettttea	[147]	≡
acactgttgggaaagaaacgaca		TGGGTACAC	AGACACATAC	TATGAT			geteatg	tatagactac	dda deda	actacaaagt	ettttea	[148]		
aca	ctgttgggaaagaaacgaca	L	TGGGTACAC	AGACACATAC	TATGAT			geteatg	tatagactac	dda deda	actacaaagt	ettttea	[149]	
ca	ctyttyygaaagaaacgaca	L	TGGGTACAC	AGACACATAC	TATGAT			geteatg	tatagactac	dda deda	actacaaagt	ettttea	[150]	
ATTGTGT	GACAACCCTT TCTTTGCTGT	TTCTAAACCC	ATGGGTACAC 501	AGACACATAC	TATGATATTO 501	GATAATGCAT	TAATTGCAC	TTTCGAGTAC	ATATCTGATG	CCTTTTCGC1	TGATGTTTCA	GAAAAGTC	A	
	4/1 401	491	TEGETACAC	DII AGACACATAC	921 Татсат		/41	geteete	tetegectec	dua de de	ool actacaaadt		FI 511	
ca	crutruuusaanaaacuaca		TEGETACAC	AGACACATAC	ТАТБАТ			geocatog	tatagactac	ada aca: AAr Aca:	actacaaad	cttttca	[152]	
	ctuttuuusaanaaacuaca		TEGETACAC	AGACACATAC	ТАТБАТ			geocatog	tatagactac	aas aca: Aar aca:	actacaaad	cttttca	[153]	
actuttuugaaagaaacuaca		. r						,,			actacaaad	cttttca	[154]	
	ctottoogaaagaaacgaca		158 se	ts of pri	mers ha	ave been	desian	ed from	the 5' e	end to	actacaaad	cttttca	[155]	
_	ctottoggaaagaaacgaca	aada	the 2'	and and	Ladditia	nal acta	from the	150 th	not hovo	hoon	actacaaad	etttea	11561	
ctuttuggaaagaaacgacaaaga													[157]	
	tottoggaaagaaacgaca	aaga	design	ed again	from th	ie 5' end	to the 3	' end.			actacaaad	etttea	F1.581	
														~
<													>	
🗿 Done 🕒 😫 🔮 Internet														
🛃 sta	art 🦷 🖁 2.2 - Paint		LAMP Pri	mer designi <u>n</u>	🖉 Prim	er Set List : <u>Prim</u>	a					(4:30 PM	
												Ý		

Figure 2.2 Primer Set List window (page 2)

< Note>

For GC rich sequences, the parameter set for GC rich sequences are automatically selected and the primers are designed to cover the entire target sequence.